
 

 

 
October 23, 2019         
 
TO:  Members of the Maricopa Regional Continuum of Care Board 
 
FROM:  Sergeant Rob Ferraro, City of Tempe Police, Co-Chair 
  Amy Schwabenlender, Human Services Campus, Co-Chair 
   
SUBJECT: MEETING NOTIFICATION AND TRANSMITTAL OF TENTATIVE AGENDA 
   

Meeting—1:30 p.m. 
Monday, October 28, 2019 

  MAG Office, Second Floor, Ironwood Room     
302 North 1st Avenue 
Phoenix, AZ  85003  

 
The next Maricopa Regional Continuum of Care (CoC) Board meeting will be held at the time 
and place noted above.  Members of the CoC Board may attend either in person or by phone. 
Supporting information is enclosed for your review.   
 
The meeting agenda and resource materials are also available on the MAG website at 
www.azmag.gov.  This location is publicly accessible and does not require a password. 
 
Please park in the garage underneath the building. Bring your ticket to the meeting, parking will 
be validated.  For those using transit, the Regional Public Transportation Authority will provide 
transit tickets for your trip.  For those using bicycles, please lock your bicycle in the bike rack in 
the garage. 
 
In 1996, the Regional Council approved a simple majority quorum for all MAG advisory 
committees. If the Continuum of Care Board does not meet the quorum requirement, members 
who have arrived at the meeting will be instructed a legal meeting cannot occur and 
subsequently be dismissed. Your attendance at the meeting is strongly encouraged. 
 
Pursuant to Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), MAG does not discriminate on 
the basis of disability in admissions to or participation in its public meetings.  Persons with a 
disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language interpreter, by 
contacting the MAG office.  Requests should be made as early as possible to allow time to 
arrange the accommodation. 
 

http://www.azmag.gov/


Maricopa Regional CoC Board – Tentative Agenda                  October 28, 2019 

 

 

Maricopa Regional Continuum of 

Care Board 
TENTATIVE AGENDA 

October 28, 2019 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Call to the Audience (5 minutes) 

An opportunity will be provided to members of the public to address the 

Maricopa Regional Continuum of Care Board on items that are not on the 

agenda that are within the jurisdiction of MAG, or on items on the agenda for 

discussion but not for action. Citizens will be requested not to exceed a three 

minute time period for their comments. A total of 15 minutes will be provided 

for the Call to the Audience agenda item, unless the Board requests an 

exception to this limit. Please note that those wishing to comment on agenda 

items posted for action will be provided the opportunity at the time the item 

is heard. 

Action Requested: 

Information. 

3. Approval of Consent Agenda (10 minutes) 

Board members may request that an item be removed from the consent 

agenda. Prior to action on the consent agenda, members of the audience will 

be provided an opportunity to comment on consent items. Consent items are 

marked with an asterisk (*). 

Action Requested: 

Approval of the Consent Agenda. 

1



Maricopa Regional CoC Board – Tentative Agenda                  October 28, 2019 

 

ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONSENT * 

*3A. Approval of the September 30, 2019, Meeting Minutes 

 

Draft Meeting Minutes were distributed with the meeting materials. 

Action Requested: 

Approval of the September 30, 2019 meeting minutes. 

*3B. Arizona State University Data Study 

On June 24, 2019, the Continuum of Care Board approved an ongoing data 

share agreement with Arizona State University (ASU). The motion to approve 

the data share stipulated that ASU must seek approval for studies that utilize 

the data. The ASU, Center for Health Information & Research (CHiR) is seeking 

approval for the first study on the impact of permanent supportive housing on 

cost and utilization of Medicaid for individuals with Serious Mental Illness.  A 

copy of the request was distributed with the meeting materials. 

 

Action Requested: 

Approval of the ASU, CHiR data study. 

ITEMS PROPOSED TO BE HEARD 

4. Recognition of Outgoing Board Members (10 minutes) 

Four Continuum of Care Board Members have terms that expire in 2019. The 

CoC Board will recognize: Scott Hall, Maricopa County Human Services 

Department; Dr. Dawn Noggle (retired), Maricopa County Jails; Darlene 

Newsom, UMOM; and, Amy Schwabenlender, Human Services Campus. 

Action Requested: 

Information and discussion. 

5. Election of New Continuum of Care Board Members (15 minutes) 

The Board announced new member application availability on September 20, 

2019. Applications were submitted by October 18. A Board membership 

2



Maricopa Regional CoC Board – Tentative Agenda                  October 28, 2019 

 

workgroup met on October 25 and will recommend up to five new members 

for the Continuum of Care Board (four members rotating off and one vacancy). 

 

Action Requested: 

Approval of new members for the Continuum of Care Board. 

6. Election of CoC Board Co-Chair (15 minutes) 

Amy Schwabenlender, Co-Chair of the Continuum of Care Board is rotating off 

the Board. The Board will consider electing a new CoC Board Co-Chair.  

 

Action Requested: 

Approval of a new CoC Board Co-Chair. 

7. Racial Equity Update (10 minutes) 

Staff will update the Board on the CoC’s work around race and ethnic equity. 

Feedback on the consultant Scope of Work will be solicited. The Scope of Work 

was distributed with the meeting materials. 

 

Action Requested: 

Information, discussion and feedback on the race and ethnic equity project. 

8. Committee, Subcommittee and Staff Reports (20 minutes) 

An update will be provided from the Data Subcommittee. Staff will report on 

1) the Built for Zero project and 2) Upcoming Training. 

 

Action Requested: 

Information and discussion.  

9. Request for Future Agenda Items (10 minutes) 

Topics or issues of interest that the Maricopa Regional Continuum of Care 

Board would like to have considered for discussion at a future meeting will be 

requested. 

Action Requested: 

Information. 

3



Maricopa Regional CoC Board – Tentative Agenda                  October 28, 2019 

 

10. Comments from the Board (5 minutes) 

An opportunity will be provided for the Maricopa Regional Continuum of Care 

Board members to present a brief summary of current events. The Board is not 

allowed to propose, discuss, deliberate or take action at the meeting on any 

matter in the summary, unless the specific matter is properly noticed for legal 

action. 

Action Requested: 

Information. 

 Adjournment 

 

Action Requested: 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 

4



MINUTES OF THE 
MARICOPA REGIONAL  

CONTINUUM OF CARE BOARD MEETING 
September 30, 2019 

MAG Office Building, Ironwood Room 
 

MEMBERS ATTENDING 
Erik Cole, Arizona State University 
Diana Yazzie Devine, NAC 
Sergeant Rob Ferraro, City of Tempe Police, 

Co-Chair 
#Marchelle Franklin, City of Phoenix 
Tad Gary, Mercy Care 
#Scott Hall, Maricopa County 
Samantha Jackson, Downtown Phoenix 

Partnership 
 
 
*Did not attend 
#Attended by telephone conference call 

 
Bruce Liggett, Maricopa County 
*Darlene Newsom, UMOM 
#Dawn Noggle, PhD.,  Community Member 
Amy Schwabenlender, Human Services 

Campus, Co-Chair 
*Stephanie Small, City of Glendale 
*Tamara Wright, Community Solutions 
 
 

 
 

OTHERS PRESENT 
Priscilla Acero, AZCEND 
Juan Aristizabal, Magellan 
Richard DiCarlo, St. Patrick’s 
Alfred Edwards, DES 
Paul Magallanez, HonorHealth 
Chela Schuster, Community Solutions 
 
 
 

 
Joan Serviss, AZ Housing Coalition 
Tamara Spendley, City of Phoenix 
Nicky Stevens, City of Tempe 
Jacki Taylor, Save the Family 
Jowan Thornton, Salvation Army 
John Wall, AHI 
Brandi Whisler, Circle the City 
 
MAG STAFF 
Julie Montoya 
Sarah Kent 
Anne Scott 
Shantae Smith 

  
1. Welcome and Introductions 

Amy Schwabenlender, Human Services Campus, Co-Chair of the CoC Board, called the 
meeting to order at 1:36 p.m. Introductions ensued.   

 

CoC Board 10-28-2019 Agd#3A DRAFT CoC Board Meeting Minutes 9-30-2019

5



2. Call to the Audience 
There were no comments from the audience.  
 

3. Approval of the Consent Agenda   
Erik Cole, ASU, moved to approve the consent agenda. Dede Yazzie Devine, NAC, seconded 
the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

4. Updated Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) Standards & Best Practices  
Chela Schuster, Community Solutions, explained that the updated language involves landlord 
engagement, and ensuring that we are working on mutual decisions. More language was added 
so that clients know their rights and understand the process. Trauma-informed care was 
included in the training as well. Even though providers have restrictions based on funding 
source regarding the time limits of RRH, this document is what organization needs to follow 
for service delivery. It ensures a RRH standard of care regardless of the provider.  
 
Ms. Scott noted that the matrix remains unchanged. Ms. Yazzie Devine expressed her desire to 
see a stronger race equity language moving forward.  
 
Tad Gary, Mercy Care, moved to accept the document. Mr. Cole seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously.  
 

5. Family Housing Hub Operations Manual  
Shantae Smith, MAG, provided an overview of the manual, and noted that AHCCCS language 
and the appendix were added. The language reflects as much care for the clients as possible. 
The manual includes information on operations and what is required. 

 
Ms. Schuster added that the section on the percentage of people who were declined through 
coordinated entry was removed because it is a continuum of care standard and is included in 
the Policies and Procedures.  
 
Ms. Scott noted that data collection requirements are included in HMIS Policies and Procedures 
and that the Family Housing Hub uses HMIS. 
 
Ms. Smith expressed that the monthly inflow and outflow can be viewed on the dashboard. 
Tracking family data in the BFZ dashboard is a huge win for the community.  
 
Samantha Jackson, Downtown Phoenix Partnership, moved to approve the manual. Mr. Gary 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
6. Arizona Housing Coalition—Legislative Update  

CoC Board 10-28-2019 Agd#3A DRAFT CoC Board Meeting Minutes 9-30-2019

6



Joan Serviss, Executive Director of the Arizona Housing Coalition, spoke about impacts of the 
federal program if Congress takes action. She is hoping there will be a budget conversation 
before January 1st. Senator McSally is targeted to sign on to affordable housing legislation with 
Senator Krysten Sinema. The legislation would build over 500,000 homes in two years. The 
IRS formula is based on population, and would also allow more of a federal funding pulldown. 
Ms. Serviss offered to provide a sample support letter to providers. The expectation is to push 
this legislation forward in 2019. Over 20 legislators that have signed on.   
 
Ms. Serviss concluded her update by stating that the current administration nibbles away at the 
edges for mixed status and LGBTQ protections. The Impact Rule is the newest effort. She put 
out a call to action to ask people to submit comments about the rule. Deadline for proposed 
comments is October 18th.  
 
The community is pleased by the State Legislature’s action to provide the Arizona Department 
of Housing one-time funding of $15,000,000, but there is still a lot more work to do. The 
Housing Coalition has two priorities, and always seeks feedback from members. The Housing 
Trust Fund needs to be restated to its original level, as does the AZ Low Income Housing Tax 
Credit. The mechanisms that hurt homeless youth and families need to be cleaned up. 
 
Ms. Yazzie Devine expressed appreciation for Ms. Serviss’ ability to make the numerous 
legislative bills easier to understand.  
   
Ms. Serviss noted that there is only one proposal this year because they get placated sometimes, 
and are told by legislators to come back next year. The goal is create some tool kits for local 
advocates to use for their own advocacy. The Coalition is trying to help with more local input 
this year. The National League of Cities and Towns has a local best practice to learn about 
tracking policy. Additionally, the municipal response to homelessness will help keep every 
organization in line.  
 
Ms. Serviss invited all to attend the October 29 and 30 Coalition Conference.  
 

7. Committee, Subcommittee and Staff Reports 
Brandi Whisler, Circle the City, Co-Chair of the CoC Committee, noted that members 
recommended the Rapid Re-Housing Standards and Best Practices to the Board for approval, 
as well as the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Emergency Transfer Plan and the Family 
Housing Hub Operations manual. Additionally, the Committee discussed HMIS policies for 
funder access. A small workgroup will be forming to update the HMIS Release of Information 
to ease client understanding of the document. Members are encouraged to apply for the co-chair 
position. Both seats are open, as Ms. Whisler is stepping down from the Committee. Ms. Scott  
thanked Ms. Whisler for her hard work and dedication to ending homelessness.  

CoC Board 10-28-2019 Agd#3A DRAFT CoC Board Meeting Minutes 9-30-2019

7



Ms. Scott added that MAG staff checked in with the race and equity workgroup, and will follow 
up with discussions.  
 
Ms. Smith requested feedback from the community on the ROI. Ms. Scott announced that the 
NOFA was submitted on Friday, and thanked contributing members.  
 
Julie Montoya, MAG, noted that staff met with the Arizona Housing Coalition to discuss 
scheduling SPDAT trainings, and some dates have been scheduled for November. She added 
that the Racial Equity Workgroup is working on a scope of work. She asked the Board whether 
it still wants to workgroup to meet.  
 
Ms. Yazzie Devine expressed that the work is so important and that it should start with the 
Board. The scope of work shouldn’t be made by the workgroup.  
 
Ms. Montoya clarified that her intention was to start the scope of work and then pass it off to 
the Board, and added that the workgroup had discussed how the scope of work for 
recommendation to the Board. 
 
Mr. Cole added that the way the data was brought to the Board was very important. The racial 
equity work should be embedded into everything.  

     
Nicky Stevens, City of Tempe, noted that many community providers have requested inclusion 
training. There is the opportunity for several focuses. The Housing Coalition is a great 
organization to schedule and lead these trainings. Ms. Montoya invited everyone to the racial 
equity workgroup, and will send out notes from last month’s meeting.  
 

8. Requests for Future Agenda Items 
Co-Chair Ferraro expressed the need for a co-chair, and urged members to apply. Mr. Gary 
suggested adding the race and equity as a future agenda item. 
 

9. Comments from the Board 
There were no comments from the Board. 
 

10. Motion to Adjourn 
Mr. Liggett moved to adjourn. Ms. Jackson seconded the motion. The next meeting will be on 
October 28, 2019.  

CoC Board 10-28-2019 Agd#3A DRAFT CoC Board Meeting Minutes 9-30-2019

8



 

502 E Monroe St, Suite C320, Phoenix, AZ 85004 
Phone: 602.496.2009 | Fax: 602.496.2020 

chir@asu.edu | chs.asu.edu/chir 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: COMMUNITY INFORMATION & REFERRAL SERVICES, CRISIS RESPONSE 
NETWORK  

FROM:  CENTER FOR HEALTH INFORMATION & RESEARCH 

SUBJECT: REQUEST TO USE HMIS DATA IN STUDY ON CHRONIC MENTAL ILLNESS 

DATE:  10/11/2019 

CC: TYLER ROSENSTEEL, TARA BINGDAZZO, ANNE SCOTT 

  

Purpose 

This memo serves as a request from the Arizona State University’s (ASU) Center for Health 
Information & Research (CHiR) for permission to extract information from existing HMIS data in 
its repository. This data will be used by a research team at the ASU Morrison Institute for Public 
Policy. 

Purpose of Data Use/Disclosure 

The Morrison Institute seeks to analyze the impact of supportive permanent housing on cost 
and utilization for Medicaid eligible Seriously Mentally Ill (SMI) individuals. From CHiR, the study 
team requests merging of several data sources and creation of three cohort populations for 
analysis and reporting. 

Inclusion Criteria 

Arizona Medicaid claims data will be queried according to the following criteria. 

 Population: SMI individuals 

 Geography: Maricopa County 

 Years of data: 2014-2018 

 Ages: 18+ 

Data Extraction & Reporting 

The cohort of Medicaid claims produced from the inclusion criteria will be matched to the HMIS 
data and other data sources at the patient level. From the merged data set, three cohort data 
sets will be created with data that is at least one year prior to enrollment and two years after 
enrollment in supportive housing. 

 Individuals who are enrolled in Marc Community Resources’ Lighthouses  
 Individuals enrolled in other permanent supportive housing 
 A control group of Title XIX SMI individuals 

CoC Board 10-28-2019 Agd#3B Arizona State University Data Study

9



Chronic Mental Illness 

Page 2 of 2 

The cohort data sets will be analyzed to answer specified questions on costs and results 
reported in figures and tables. A service utilization model will also be populated from the cohort 
data sets (see IRB protocol for details). 

Personnel 

The following CHiR staff will be involved in producing and analyzing the cohort data sets. 

 Gevork Harootunian, MS(c), Principal Statistical Programmer and HIPAA Security 
Officer 

 Varnika Angampally, MS, Data Analysis Specialist 

 Stephen LaCour, MS, Statistical Programmer 

The results will be delivered to Melissa Kovacs, PhD, PStat, Associate Director for Research at 
the Morrison Institute. 

Approvals/Assurances 

 This study was reviewed and approved by the ASU Institutional Review Board and 
Arizona Medicaid (documentation attached).  

 A Data Use Agreement was approved (documentation attached). 

 CHiR will manage the data in accordance with the existing Business Associate 
Agreement with Community Information & Referral Services. 

 All data will be aggregated and de-identified for any public reporting purposes. 

 Results of the analysis can be shared with the Continuum of Care and/or presented to 
the Continuum of Care Board upon request. 

 

Your approval, either by signature below or provided via another written method (i.e., email, fax, 
etc.) indicates approval to use/disclose HMIS data for this study. Thank you. 

 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

Printed Name    Signature     Date 

CoC Board 10-28-2019 Agd#3B Arizona State University Data Study

10



Racial Equity –Consulting Project Scope  
 

Background: People of color are disproportionately represented in the homeless population. Homeless service 
providers often offer color-blind solutions to a problem that requires an acute focus on racial equity to solve. 
Homelessness does not affect all racial and ethnic groups equally. In addition, other marginalized groups face similar 
issues of bias and looking at the intersectionality of these disparities have been found to be consistent with racial 
equity disparities. The consultant will assist the Maricopa County Regional Continuum of Care in tracking and 
measuring data trends and adapting other monitoring strategies if needed that will help find solutions and eliminate 
barriers to opportunity and access to services.  
 
Goal: The Racial Equity Workgroup seeks to hire a consultant to assist with providing a strategy for equal access to 
all clients no matter their race and backgrounds.  
 
  
 
Expected Outcomes:  
 

• Equal access to services for all people no matter their race or ethnicity. 
• Service providers will give clear data to show reporting transparency.  
• Use current data tools to analyze trends to show racial disparities in client services.  
• Monitoring and evaluating of programs to ensure constant oversight.  
• Incorporate diversity among organizational leadership and staff. 
• All organizational leadership and staff will be trained on understanding racism and the intersection of 

racism and homelessness.  
• Policies and procedures will be monitored and upheld to further equal access and greater opportunity 

as well as updated when necessary.  
 
 
Scope of Work:  
   
    

• Develop a regional action agenda and tool to eliminate racial inequities and advance racial equity. 
• Elevate and expand existing racial equity work in the region and promote alignment across sectors. 
• Develop a comprehensive communication tool to develop messaging and strategies when speaking 

about racial equity. 
• Launch a 5-year regional scorecard to develop accountability framework and track sector progress in 

closing racial disparities in key areas. 
• The consultant will identify racial disparities in our services, policies and organizational structures.  
• Develop mechanisms for collecting data and evaluate progress in identifying racial disparities in our 

community’s homeless services (general population vs. homeless, return to homelessness, eviction 
rates, income disparities, DV, MH, SA, VI-SPDAT scores, etc.). Use data to better understand the 
dynamics that drive the inflow and outflow.  

• Conduct additional research to understand the needs of transgender, gender expansive, Lesbian, Gay 
and Bisexual individuals. 

CoC Board 10-28-2019 Agd#7 Racial Equity Consultant Scope of Work

11



• Review and develop project monitoring policies, procedures and tools to enforce existing Fair Housing 
protections of local, state, and federal government which further eliminates racial barriers and 
inequities.  

• Look at using tools to regulate evictions more closely and use advocates to assist with clients in court.  
 

 
 
Deliverables and Timeline:  Monitoring and evaluation tools, policies & procedures, including implementation plan to 
be presented by ____. 
 

 

CoC Board 10-28-2019 Agd#7 Racial Equity Consultant Scope of Work

12




